
         

 

 

SAIL HARBOUR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 8, 2024 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.sailharbourcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
  SAIL HARBOUR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Hilton Garden Inn 
12600 University Drive 

Fort Myers, Florida 33907 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 8, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
   

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Consider Appointment to Board Vacancy…………………………………………..............................Page 2 

D. Administer Oath of Office and Review Board Member Duties and Responsibilities 

E. Establish Quorum 

F. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

G. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

H. Approval of Minutes 

1. November 13, 2023 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………….Page 3 

I. Old Business 

J. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Budget…….Page 6 

2. Consider Approval of Johnson Engineering’s Rate Adjustment………………………………..Page 13 

3. Discussion Regarding Clogged French Drains 

4. Discussion Regarding Sail Harbour Fencing Project Authority 

K. Administrative Matters 

1. Engineer’s Report 

2. Financials…………………………………………………………………………………………Page 15 

L. Board Members Comments 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



PATRICIA ANN MYERS 

1705 Junonia Court 

Fort Myers, Florida 33908-1603 

patricia33908@gmail.com 

Internet site: www.aemyers.net 

Telephone: 239.222.1012 

Patricia, a native of Florida, is daughter of a career U.S. Army officer and lived in 
many places in the United State and abroad. Some of her activities: 

- attended the University of Maryland and the University of Florida. 

- was the Project Manager for Cumberland Circle in Gainesville, Florida and 
supervised the builders, landscapers and venders. She also sold the homes and 
helped the buyers make their selections.  

- was a Real Estate broker for many years in Gainesville, Florida.  

- was a Lee County Master Gardener and has given talks on various topics, 
worked at Lakes Park giving tours and talks. 

- past president of the James Hendry Hibiscus Society in Lee County and is an 
expert on hibiscus care.  

- a Florida Naturalist and has spent many hours learning about our local nature.  

- a nature tour guide on the Shell Point tour boat for 15 years and narrates tours 
around the Lee County area.  

- was Regent of the Coral Gables DAR and is a member of the Henry Samson 
Colony of the Mayflower Society and of the Caloosahatchee Chapter, DAR.  

- worked for J C Penney, Burdines and Bloomingdale’s as a custom designer.  

- was an Elderhostel Coordinator for Barry University and traveled with about 
50  adults to various sites.  

- was a volunteer at the Lakes Park Library. She was a Hope Hospice volunteer.  

- owns 5 townhouses in Sail Harbour which she manages as well as lives here 
year round. 

- as a gardener, she likes to weed and prune and spray for bugs! 
 

Page 2



Page 1 of 3 
 

SAIL HARBOUR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 13, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The November 13, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Sail Harbour Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 6:00 p.m. at the Hilton Garden Inn located at 12600 
University Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33907. 
 
B.  PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Fort Myers News-Press on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was noted that a quorum was established by the presence of: 
 
Chairperson Marge Howerton Present 
Vice Chairperson Susan Balaun  Present 
Supervisor Richard Balaun Present 
Supervisor Vacant  
Supervisor Irene Imbasciani Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services 
District Counsel Ginger Wald (via phone) Billing, Cochran, Lyles, 

Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
District Engineer Brent Burford (via phone) Johnson Engineering, Inc. 

 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA  
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  August 14, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the August 14, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration.    
 

Page 3



Page 2 of 3 
 

A motion was made by Ms. Balaun seconded by Ms. Imbasciani and passed unanimously 
approving the minutes of the August 14, 2023, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as 
presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Amended 
Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-05 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SAIL 
HARBOUR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL 
YEAR 2022/2023 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO 
CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Balaun, seconded by Mr. Balaun and passed unanimously adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-03, as presented. 
 
 2.  Discussion Regarding Clogged French Drains 
 
Ms. Howerton advised that this issue was brought up by homeowners regarding the drains from 
the front of the roofs between the home and the stormwater ditches being clogged.  She indicated 
that it was causing silting in the driveways.  Mr. Burford advised that they take a look at these each 
year and that the stormwater system was draining well.   He further stated that he could look at the 
downspouts from the home, if he gets a specific address(es).   Ms. Howerton stated she would get 
Mr. Burford those addresses.  Mr. Burford added that there were no ownership maps to downspout 
connection, and it is probably an HOA or homeowner issue. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding District Fencing Project Authority 
 
Ms. Howerton advised that the HOA wants to put a fence at the north end of the property to keep 
youngsters from walking through private yards.  She noted that Eagle Fencing was trying to permit 
the project and the CDD name is on one area and Sail Harbour is on the other.  She showed the 
contractor the agreement between the CDD and Sail Harbour to maintain the common area, but 
they still are seeking CDD approval.  Ms. Wald indicated that she would review the documents 
and may need to develop a license agreement with the HOA if it is on CDD property.  She 
requested the specific location of the fence and the documents that require signature. 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Balaun, seconded by Ms. Balaun and passed 
unanimously directing the attorney to draft a license agreement, or any other legal agreement 
required for the project, to be signed by the Chair and ratified at a future meeting.  Said agreement 
is to include reimbursement for attorney fees by the HOA for their fencing request. 

Page 4



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
The Regular Board Meeting was then recessed and a meeting of the Auditor Selection Committee 
was opened. 
 
I. AUDITOR SELECTION COMMITTEE 
 1.  Ranking of Proposals/Consider Selection of an Auditor 
 
Ms. Wald noted that only one qualified proposal had been received from Grau & Associates; 
therefore the ranking of the proposal process is waived. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Balaun, seconded by Ms. Imbasciani and passed unanimously 
selecting Grau & Associates as the District’s auditor. 
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Engineer’s Report 
 
There was no Engineer’s Report at this time. 
 
 2.  Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials.  The Board Members had no questions. 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the upcoming meeting schedule with the proposed budget being presented 
in March.  There was a consensus of the Board to send an inquiry for the February meeting and if 
there are no pressing items, to cancel it. 
 
 3.  Update on Filling Board Vacancy 
 
Ms. Wald stated the seat should be filled in 90 days and requested continued due diligence to fill 
the vacancy.  She went over the requirements to serve on the CDD Board.  Ms. Howerton stated 
she would bring the issue up at the next HOA meeting. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Imbasciani, 
seconded by Mr. Balaun and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 6:57 
p.m.  
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SAIL 
HARBOUR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Sail Harbour Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SAIL HARBOUR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for August 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. in 
the Hilton Garden Inn, 12600 University Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33907, for the purpose of 
receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of April, 2024. 
 

 
ATTEST: SAIL HARBOUR 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 6



   Sail Harbour
Community Development District

     Proposed Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2024/2025

        October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



  Sail Harbour
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
March 2024

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18


	Sail Harbour Community Development District April 8, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resignation and Appointment to Board Vacancy
	November 13, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Budget
	Consider Approval of Johnson Engineering’s Rate Adjustment
	Financials




